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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS 

Amanda Pierni, individually and on behalf of all  : 
others similarly situated,  : 

 : 
 Plaintiff,     : 

 : 
vs.  : C.A. No.    

   : 
Midland Credit Management Inc.  : 

 : 
 Defendant.     :      
 

DEFENDANT’S NOTICE OF REMOVAL 

Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1441, 28 U.S.C. § 1446 and 28 U.S.C. § 1331, defendant Midland 

Credit Management Inc. (“MCM” or “Defendant”), by and through its undersigned counsel, for 

the purpose of removing this case from the Superior Court of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

for Plymouth County to the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts, 

respectfully states:  

1. State Court Action.    

 Plaintiff Amanda Pierni, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated 

(“Plaintiff”) filed a Class Action Complaint for Damages for Violations of the Fair Debt Collection 

Practices Act, 15 U.S. C. §§ 1692, et seq. (“Complaint”) against defendant on February 17, 2023 

in the Superior Court of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Plymouth County, which was 

assigned Civil Action No. 2383CV-00150.  Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(a), a copy of Plaintiff’s 

Complaint and all other process and pleadings received in this action are attached hereto as Exhibit 

A. 
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2. Federal Jurisdiction.    

 A.  Federal Question.   

 This Court has jurisdiction over this civil action based on federal question jurisdiction 

pursuant to 28 U.S. C. § 1331.  Plaintiff asserts that Defendant violated the Fair Debt Collection 

Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq. (“FDCPA”).  See Exhibit A, Complaint at ¶¶ 5-6; 9; 29-

32; 34; 56-57. 

A civil action filed in state court may be removed to federal district court if at least one of 

the claims asserted therein “aris[es] under the Constitution, laws, or treaties of the United States.” 

28 U.S.C. § 1441(c)(1)(A). 

The Plaintiff’s claims for violations of the FDCPA arises under federal law and, therefore, 

this Court has original jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 

1331 and 28 U.S.C. § 1441(a).   

3. Prior Federal Court Action.  The Plaintiff previously filed a nearly identical action in 

this Court at Docket No. 1:22-cv-12021.  Plaintiff voluntarily dismissed the prior action on January 

27, 2023.  

4. Proper Venue.  Venue is proper in the United States District Court for the District of 

Massachusetts because the Plymouth County Superior Court is located within the Eastern Division 

of the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts.  28 U.S.C. § 1441(a). 

5. Timeliness of Removal.  Defendant was served with the Complaint in this matter on April 

10, 2023.  Because it is within 30 days of service of the Complaint, removal of this action is 

therefore timely under 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b).      

6. Compliance.  Defendant will promptly file a copy of this Notice of Removal  with the 

Clerk of the Superior Court for Plymouth County, where this action is pending and will serve such 
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notice on Plaintiff in compliance with 28 U.S.C. §1446(d).  Certified copies of the entries in the 

Superior Court docket will be filed in connection with Defendant’s Local Rule 81.1(c) submission. 

7. Relief Requested.  Defendant respectfully requests that the United States District Court 

for the District of Massachusetts accept this Notice of Removal, and that it assume jurisdiction of 

this cause of action and issue such further orders and processes as may be necessary to bring before 

it all parties necessary for the trial hereof. 

      Respectfully submitted, 

Defendant, 
Midland Credit Management Inc. 
 
By its Attorneys, 
 
 
/s/ Krystle G. Tadesse     
Krystle G. Tadesse (BBO #673899) 
LOCKE LORD LLP 
2800 Financial Plaza 
Providence, RI  02903 
(401)-274-9200 
(401) 276-6611 (Fax) 
krystle.tadesse@lockelord.com  
 
and  
 
/s/ Stephanie Sprague    
Stephanie Sprague (BBO # 667714) 
LOCKE LORD, LLP 
111 Huntington Avenue 
Boston, MA 02199 
617.239-0222 
stephanie.sprague@lockelord.com  
 

Date:  April 18, 2023 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I, the undersigned, hereby certify that on the 18th day of April, 2022, this document, filed 

through the ECF system, will be sent electronically to the registered participants as identified on 

the Notice of Electronic Filing (NEF), and paper copies will be sent to those indicated as non-

registered participants, as follows: 

Nicola Yousif, Esq. 
Matthew A. McKenna, Esq. 
The Law Offices of Nick Yousif 
157 Belmont Street 
Brockton, MA 02301 
nick@yousiflaw.com 

Abbas Kazerounian, Esq. (pro hac vice) 
Pamela E. Prescott, Esq. (pro hac vice) 
Kazerouni Law Group, APC 
245 Fischer Avenue, Unit D1 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
ak@kazlg.com; 
pamela@kazlg.com 

 

       /s/ Krystle G. Tadesse    
            Krystle G. Tadesse 
 

Case 1:23-cv-10824-JGD   Document 1   Filed 04/18/23   Page 4 of 4



EXHIBIT A
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